SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

(d. (This Subscription Agreement (this "Agreement") is made as of
,	Effective Date") by and between The Lei Company Cooperative, Inc., a California cooperative
corpor	ation ("Company"), and ("Subscriber").
	Recital
	<u>Kecitai</u>
The C	Company wishes to issue to Subscriber, and Subscriber wishes to acquire, a Preferred
	ership in the Company as described in the Company Bylaws, subject to the terms in this
	ment and on the Crowdfund Mainstreet platform.
1151001	ment and on the crowdrand manistreet platform.
	Agreement
1.	Subscription. In consideration for Subscriber paying \$00 to the Company,
Compa	any hereby issues to Subscriber a Preferred Membership in the Company.
_	
2.	Company Representations. The Company hereby represents and warrants to Subscriber as

(a) Organization, Good Standing and Qualification. The Company is a cooperative corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws of the State of California. The Company has all requisite corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, to issue and sell the Preferred Membership, to carry out the provisions of this Agreement, and to own and operate its properties and assets and carry on its business as presently conducted.

of the date of its execution as follows:

- **(b)** <u>Authorization; Binding Obligations</u>. All corporate action on the part of the Company as necessary for the authorization of this Agreement, the performance of all obligations of the Company hereunder, and the authorization, sale, issuance, and delivery of the Preferred Membership pursuant hereto has been taken. This Agreement, when executed and delivered, will be a valid and binding obligation of the Company enforceable in accordance with its terms, except (i) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors' rights and (ii) as limited by general principles of equity that restrict the availability of equitable remedies.
- (c) <u>Bylaws</u>. A true and complete copy of the Company's Bylaws in effect at the time of the Company's execution of this Agreement is attached hereto as <u>Exhibit A</u>.
- (d) Governmental Consents and Filings. No consent, approval, order, or authorization of, or registration, qualification, designation, declaration, or filing with, any federal, state, or local governmental authority is required on the part of the Company in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, except for state and federal securities filings required in connection with a private offering.

- 4. Investment Representations. Subscriber hereby represents and warrants to the Company as follows:
- (a) The Company May Rely on These Representations. Subscriber understands that the Company's offer and sale of the Preferred Membership has not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, because the Company believes, relying in part on Subscriber's representations in this Agreement, that an exemption from such registration requirement is available for such sale. Subscriber understands that the availability of this exemption depends upon the representations Subscriber is making to the Company in this Agreement being true and correct.
- (b) <u>No Resale for One Year.</u> Subscriber understands that the Preferred Membership may not be resold for one year after the date of issuance (with limited exceptions) and that even after one year there may not be any market for the Preferred Membership.
- (c) <u>Subscriber Can Protect Its Interests.</u> Subscriber can properly evaluate the merits and risks of an investment in the Preferred Membership and can protect its own interests in this regard, whether by reason of its own business and financial expertise, the business and financial expertise of certain professional advisors unaffiliated with the Company with whom Subscriber has consulted, or Subscriber's preexisting business or personal relationship with the Company or any of its officers, directors or controlling persons.
- (d) <u>Subscriber Recognizes Its Economic Risk.</u> Subscriber understands that the purchase of the Preferred Membership involves a high degree of risk, and that the Company's future prospects are uncertain. Subscriber has the requisite knowledge to assess the relative merits and risks of this investment, or has relied upon the advice of Subscriber's professional advisors with regard to an investment in the Company. Subscriber has fully reviewed the Company's information on the Crowdfund Mainstreet platform, including the Company's Form C, and all amendments thereto, concerning purchase and sale of the Preferred Membership. Subscriber understands the risks involved in an investment in the Preferred Membership, including (1) the speculative high risk nature of the investment; (2) the financial hazards involved, including the risk of losing the entire investment; and (3) the lack of liquidity of the investment due to the absence of a trading market for the Preferred Membership.
- (e) <u>Subscriber Advised to Seek Representation.</u> Subscriber understands that nothing in this Agreement or any other materials presented to Subscriber in connection with the purchase and sale of Preferred Membership constitutes legal, tax, or investment advice. The Company has advised Subscriber to consult with such legal, tax, and investment advisors as Subscriber, in its sole discretion, deems necessary or appropriate in connection with its purchase of Preferred Membership.
- (f) <u>Complete Information.</u> All information provided by Subscriber to the Company and on the Crowdfund Mainstreet platform in connection with the purchase of Preferred Membership is true, correct, and complete as of the date set forth hereof, and if there should be any change in such information, Subscriber will immediately provide the Company with such

information. Subscriber is not subject to backup withholding by the Internal Revenue Service (unless Subscriber provides written notice to the Company that it is subject to backup withholding).

- (g) <u>Authority; Binding Agreement.</u> Subscriber represents and warrants to, and covenants with, the Company that (i) Subscriber has full right, power, authority, and capacity to enter into this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and has taken all necessary action to authorize the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement, and (ii) this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Subscriber enforceable against the Subscriber in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by applicable law.
- (h) <u>Indemnification.</u> Subscriber agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company and its agents, officers, and directors for any claims, judgments, or expenses incurred as a result of any misrepresentation made by the Subscriber.
- (i) No Resale Without Registration or Exemption. The Subscriber has been advised that the Preferred Membership has not been registered under the Securities Act, or any state securities laws and, therefore, cannot be resold unless it is registered under the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws or unless an exemption from such registration requirements is available

5. Miscellaneous.

(a) Notice. Any notice or demand which either party may or must give to the other under this Agreement shall be made in writing and shall be either hand delivered or sent via email, facsimile, or U.S. certified mail to the following addresses, or at such other addresses which each party may later designate in writing to the other party:

If to the Company

Tiffany Lacsado
The Lei Company Cooperative, Inc.
6609 Bancroft Ave
Oakland, CA 94605

Phone: 510-850-1004

Email: tiffany@theleicompany.com

If to Subscriber

At the office of MiTec, PBC (dba Crowdfund MainStreet) 2601 Blanding Ave. C528 Alameda, CA 94501

- (b) <u>Governing Law</u>. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, regardless of the laws that might otherwise govern under applicable principles of conflict of laws thereof.
- (c) <u>Further Assurances</u>. Each party hereto shall execute and/or cause to be delivered to each other party hereto such instruments and other documents, and shall take such other actions, as such other party may reasonably request for the purpose of carrying out or evidencing any of the transactions contemplated hereby.
- (d) <u>Entire Agreement; Amendment.</u> This Agreement, along with agreements completed on the Crowdfund Mainstreet platform, constitutes the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement between the parties pertaining to the purchase and sale of the Preferred Membership by the Subscriber from the Company and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings or agreements of the parties. Such agreement between the parties may not be amended, modified, or revoked, in whole or in part, except by an agreement in writing signed by each of the parties hereto.
- (e) <u>Assignment</u>. The Subscriber may not assign any of its rights nor delegate any of its obligations under this Agreement to any other person without the prior written consent of the Company. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Subscriber's successors and assigns (if any).
- (f) <u>Counterparts</u>. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and both of which together shall constitute one instrument.
- (g) <u>Electronic Signatures</u>. Subscriber may tender to the Company this Agreement by electronic means such as by email or facsimile. If Subscriber submits this Agreement to the Company electronically, Subscriber agrees that Subscriber's digital signature or other form of electronic acknowledgement, consent or acceptance (as the case may be), constitutes Subscriber's signature, acceptance and agreement of the terms of this Agreement and such digital signature, consent or acceptance shall be given the same force and effect as a signature affixed by hand.
- (h) <u>Severability</u>. If a court or an arbitrator of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Agreement to be illegal, unenforceable, or invalid in whole or in part for any reason, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions, or portions of them, will not be affected.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this Subscription Agreement as of the Effective Date.

SUBSCRIBER:
[FOR ENTITY USE THIS SIGNATURE BLOCK]
By:(Signature)
(Signature)
Name:
Title:
[FOR INDIVIDUAL USE THIS SIGNATURE BLOCK]
(Signature)
Name:
COMPANY:
The Lei Company Cooperative, Inc.
By:
Name: Tiffany Rose Lacsado
Title: President

EXHIBIT A THE LEI COMPANY COOPERATIVE, INC. BYLAWS

BYLAWS OF THE LEI COMPANY COOPERATIVE, INC.

ARTICLE I: PURPOSES

The corporation is organized and shall conduct its business primarily for the mutual benefit of its members as patrons of the corporation. The earnings, savings, or benefits of the corporation shall be used for the general welfare of the members or shall be proportionately and equitably distributed to some or all of its members or its patrons, based upon their patronage of the corporation, in the form of cash, property, evidences of indebtedness, capital credits, memberships, or services.

The corporation is democratically controlled and is not organized to make a profit for itself, as such, or for its members, as such, but primarily for its members as patrons.

The purpose of the corporation shall include creating a material positive impact on society and the environment, taken as a whole, from the business and operations of the corporation.

The corporation is a "worker cooperative," which means that it includes a class of worker-members who are natural persons whose patronage consists of labor contributed to or other work performed for the corporation. At all times, at least 51 percent of the workers shall be worker-members or candidates.

ARTICLE II: DEFINITIONS

- A. Mailing means first-class mail, postage prepaid.
- B. The *time a notice is given or sent* means, unless otherwise expressly provided, (1) the time a written notice by mail is deposited in the United States mails, postage prepaid; (2) the time any other written notice is personally delivered to the recipient, delivered to a common carrier for transmission to the recipient, or actually transmitted by electronic means to the recipient; or (3) the time any oral notice is communicated, in person or by telephone or wireless, to the recipient or to a person at the office of the recipient who the person giving the notice has reason to believe will promptly communicate it to the recipient.
- C. Electronic transmission by the corporation means a communication (1) delivered by means of electronic communication, (2) to a recipient who has provided an unrevoked consent to the use of those means of transmission for communications, (3) that creates a record that is capable of retention, retrieval, and review, and that may thereafter be rendered into clearly legible tangible form, and (4) satisfies the requirements applicable to consumer consent to electronic records as set forth in the Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 7001(c)(1)).

- D. *Electronic transmission to the corporation* means a communication (1) delivered by means of electronic communication, (2) as to which the corporation has placed in effect reasonable measures to verify that the sender is the person purporting to send the transmission, and (3) that creates a record that is capable of retention, retrieval, and review, and that may thereafter be rendered into clearly legible tangible form.
- E. A *membership* refers to the rights a member has pursuant to the corporation's articles, bylaws, and the law. Memberships may be issued by the corporation for such consideration as is determined by the board.
- F. A *worker-member* is a member of the corporation who is a natural person and also a patron of the corporation.
- G. A *community investor* is a person who is not a worker-member and who holds an equity interest in the corporation.
- H. A worker means a natural person contributing labor or services to the corporation.
- I. A *candidate* means a worker who is being considered for Worker-membership in the corporation.
- J. The corporation's *patrons* are its worker-members.

ARTICLE III: MEMBERS

A. Classification of Members

The corporation shall have two classes of members: (1) Worker-members and (2) Community Investors, also known as Preferred Members.

B. Worker-Membership Qualifications

A natural person may become a Worker-member of this corporation by:

- Making payment of the initial capital contribution as prescribed by the board of directors;
- Working as a candidate for the candidacy period prescribed by the board of directors;
- Being voted in by the board following the candidacy period; and
- Receiving a copy of the corporation's Disclosure Statement, bylaws, and a receipt.

If an application for Worker-membership is not accepted, the applicant's employment shall be immediately terminated, unless the board chooses to specify a further candidacy period. Following the second candidacy period, if the application is not accepted by a vote of at least

two-thirds of the board, the applicant's employment shall be immediately terminated. Upon acceptance of an application, the applicant shall immediately become a Worker-member.

In the case of an application by a former member, the board may waive the Candidacy Period and accept back the former Worker-member immediately.

C. Worker-Member Resignation

A Worker-member has the right to resign as a Worker-member of the corporation by filing with the secretary of the corporation a written notice of resignation. The resignation shall become effective immediately without any action on the part of the corporation. An individual will not be allowed to work for the corporation for one month following voluntary termination of Worker-membership unless her or his Worker-membership is reinstated by the corporation. Resignation shall not relieve the resigning Worker-member from any obligation for charges incurred, dues, assessments, or fees, and this section shall not diminish any right of the corporation to enforce any such obligation or obtain damages for its breach.

D. Removal of Worker-Members

No Worker-member may be expelled or suspended except according to procedures satisfying the requirements of this section.

A Worker-member may, for any lawful reason, be expelled from the corporation by a vote of the board of directors.

The Worker-member must be given 15 days' prior notice of the expulsion, suspension, or termination and the reasons therefor and shall have an opportunity to be heard, orally or in writing, not less than five days before the effective date of the expulsion, suspension, or termination by a person or body authorized by the board to decide that the proposed expulsion, termination, or suspension not take place.

Any notice required under this section may be given by any method reasonably calculated to provide actual notice. Any notice given by mail must be given by first-class or registered mail sent to the last address of the member shown on the corporation's records.

A Worker-member who is expelled or suspended or whose Worker-membership is terminated shall be liable for any charges incurred, dues, assessments, or fees incurred before expulsion, suspension, or termination arising from contract or otherwise.

The corporation may direct a Worker-member whose expulsion is being considered to refrain from conducting business as a Worker-member until the expulsion decision is made, provided the corporation pays the Worker-member her or his average weekly wage – calculated based on the three months preceding the date of the notice given pursuant to this section – until the expulsion decision is made. The corporation may also direct a Worker-member whose expulsion is being considered to stay away from the corporation's places of business except as necessary to exercise her or his rights under law.

E. Preferred Memberships

Preferred memberships shall have no voting rights except as required by law. Preferred members shall be entitled to preferred distributions and a liquidation preference as described in Article VIII

ARTICLE IV: MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Member Voting

The voting power of the Worker-members shall be equal. The Preferred Members shall have no voting rights.

Whenever members are disqualified from voting on any matter, they shall not be counted for the determination of a quorum at any meeting to act upon, or the required vote to approve action upon, that matter.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the Worker-members present at a duly called meeting at which a quorum is present is the act of the membership, except as otherwise specified herein.

There shall be no voting by proxy.

There shall be no cumulative voting.

As to directors elected by members, there shall be available to the members reasonable nomination and election procedures given the nature, size, and operations of the corporation.

B. Annual Meeting

An annual meeting of members shall be held at a place and time determined by the board and communicated as described in section IV(E).

Elections of directors shall be held at the annual meeting. Any other proper business may be transacted at the meeting.

C. Special Meetings

Special meetings of members for any lawful purpose may be called by the board, the president, or by 5 percent or more of the members.

If the corporation has more than four Worker-members, a special meeting may only be called by the greater of three Worker-members or 5 percent of the Worker-members. If there are fewer than four Worker-members, special meetings may be called by one Worker-member.

Upon request in writing to the corporation addressed to the attention of the chairman of the board (if any), president, vice president (if any), or secretary by any person (other than the board) entitled to call a special meeting of members, the officer forthwith shall cause notice to be given to the members entitled to vote that a meeting will be held at a time fixed by the board not less than 35 nor more than 90 days after the receipt of the request.

D. Participation by Electronic Transmission

If authorized by the board of directors in its sole discretion, and subject to the consent of any members so participating, members not physically present in person at a meeting of members may, by electronic transmission by and to the corporation or by electronic video screen communication, participate in a meeting, be deemed present in person, and vote at a meeting of members, provided that the corporation implements measures to provide members a reasonable opportunity to participate in the meeting and to vote on matters submitted to the members, including an opportunity to read or hear the proceedings of the meeting concurrently with those proceedings, and a record of any vote or action of any members participating by electronic transmission is maintained by the corporation.

Any request by the corporation to a member for consent to conduct a meeting of members by electronic transmission by and to the corporation shall include a notice that absent consent of the member, the meeting shall be held at a physical location.

E. Notice

Whenever the members are required to take any action at a meeting, a written notice of the meeting shall be given not less than 10 nor more than 90 days before the date of the meeting to each member who, on the record date for notice of the meeting, is entitled to vote thereat; provided, however, that if notice is given by mail, and the notice is not mailed by first-class, registered, or certified mail, that notice shall be given not less than 20 days before the meeting.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the corporation is only required to provide notice of the meeting not less than 48 hours before the meeting if the meeting is a meeting of only Worker-members, provided that the notice is delivered personally to every Worker-member.

The notice shall state the place, date, and time of the meeting, the means of electronic transmission by and to the corporation or electronic video screen communication, if any, by which members may participate in that meeting, and (1) in the case of a special meeting, the general nature of the business to be transacted, and no other business may be transacted, or (2) in the case of the regular meeting, those matters which the board, at the time the notice is given, intends to present for action by the members. The notice of any meeting at which directors are to be elected shall include the names of all those who are nominees at the time the notice is given to members.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any of the following decisions, other than by unanimous approval by those entitled to vote, shall be valid only if the general nature of the proposal was stated in the notice of meeting or in any written waiver of notice:

- Removal of directors:
- Election of one or more directors to fill one or more vacancies;
- Approval of a contract or other transaction between the corporation and one or more of its directors, or between the corporation and any corporation, firm, or association in which one or more of its directors has a material financial interest or is a director;
- Amendment of the articles of incorporation; and
- Approval of a plan of distribution upon winding up of the corporation under Section 12658 of the California Corporations Code.

Notice of a members' meeting or any report shall be given personally, by electronic transmission by the corporation, or by mail or other means of written communication, addressed to a member at the address of such member appearing on the books of the corporation or given by the member to the corporation for purpose of notice; or if no such address appears or is given, at the place where the principal office of the corporation is located or by publication at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which the principal office is located.

If any notice or report addressed to the member at the address of such member appearing on the books of the corporation is returned to the corporation by the United States Postal Service marked to indicate the United States Postal Service is unable to deliver the notice or report to the member at such address, all future notices or reports shall be deemed to have been duly given without further mailing if the same shall be available for the member upon written demand of the member at the principal office of the corporation for a period of one year from the date of the giving of the notice or report to all other members.

Notice shall *not* be given by electronic transmission by the corporation under this section after either of the following:

- The corporation is unable to deliver two consecutive notices to the member by that means
- The inability to so deliver notices to the member becomes known to the secretary, any assistant secretary, or other person responsible for the giving of notice.

F. Waiver of Notice

The transactions of any meeting of members however called and noticed, and wherever held, are as valid as though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if a quorum is present, and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the persons entitled to vote, not present in person, provides a waiver of notice or consent to the holding of the meeting or an approval of the minutes thereof in writing. All such waivers, consents, and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

Attendance of a person at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of and presence at such meeting, except when the person objects, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened and except that attendance at a meeting is not a waiver of any right to object to the consideration of matters required to be included in the notice but not so included, if such objection is expressly made at the meeting.

Neither the business to be transacted at nor the purpose of any regular or special meeting of members need be specified in any written waiver of notice, consent to the holding of the meeting, or approval of the minutes thereof.

G. Adjourned Meetings

When a members' meeting is adjourned to another time or place, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time and place thereof (or the means of electronic transmission by and to the corporation or electronic video screen communication, if any, by which members may participate) are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting the corporation may transact any business which might have been transacted at the original meeting. If the adjournment is for more than 45 days or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each member of record entitled to vote at the meeting.

H. Written Ballot

Prior to any regular or special meeting of members, the board may authorize distribution of a written ballot to every member entitled to vote at the meeting. Such ballot shall set forth the action proposed to be taken at the meeting, shall provide an opportunity to specify approval or disapproval of the proposed action, and shall state that unless revoked by the member voting in person at the meeting, the ballot will be counted if received by the corporation on or before the time of the meeting with respect to which it was sent. If ballots are so distributed with respect to a meeting, the number of members voting at the meeting by unrevoked written ballots shall be deemed present at the meeting for purposes of determining the existence of a quorum but only with respect to the proposed action referred to in the ballots.

Written ballots may be distributed for the election of directors. The term "written ballot" does not include a ballot distributed at a special or regular meeting of members.

A written ballot distributed to 10 or more members of the corporation if it has 100 or more members shall afford an opportunity on the form of written ballot to specify a choice between approval and disapproval of each matter or group of related matters intended, at the time the written ballot is distributed, to be acted upon by such written ballot, and shall provide, subject to reasonable specified conditions, that where the person solicited specifies a choice with respect to any such matter the vote shall be cast in accordance therewith.

In any election of directors, any form of written ballot in which the directors to be voted upon are named therein as candidates and which is marked by a member "withhold" or otherwise marked

in a manner indicating that the authority to vote for the election of directors is withheld shall not be voted for the election of a director.

I. Quorum

A majority of the Worker-members shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of members. If a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of the majority of the Worker-members entitled to vote shall be the act of the members unless the vote of a greater number is required by the articles or bylaws.

The members present at a duly called or held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to transact business until adjournment notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough members to leave less than a quorum, if any action taken (other than adjournment) is approved by at least a majority of the members required to constitute a quorum or, if required by the articles or the bylaws, the vote of the greater number so required.

In the absence of a quorum, any meeting of members may be adjourned from time to time by the vote of a majority of the votes represented in person, but no other business may be transacted, except as provided in the preceding paragraph.

J. Action Without a Meeting

Any action which may be taken at any regular or special meeting of members may be taken without a meeting if the corporation distributes a written ballot to every member entitled to vote on the matter. That ballot and any related material may be sent by electronic transmission by the corporation and responses may be returned to the corporation by electronic transmission to the corporation. That ballot shall set forth the proposed action, provide an opportunity to specify approval or disapproval of any proposal, and provide a reasonable time within which to return the ballot to the corporation.

Approval by written ballot pursuant to this section shall be valid only when the number of votes cast by ballot within the time period specified equals or exceeds the quorum required to be present at a meeting authorizing the action, and the number of approvals equals or exceeds the number of votes that would be required to approve at a meeting at which the total number of votes cast was the same as the number of votes cast by ballot.

All such ballots shall indicate the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirement and, with respect to ballots other than for the election of directors, shall state the percentage of approvals necessary to pass the measure submitted. The solicitation must specify the time by which the ballot must be received in order to be counted.

Directors may be elected by written ballot under this section.

A written ballot may not be revoked.

Notice of the vote shall be given personally, by electronic transmission by the corporation, or by mail or other means of written communication, addressed to a member at the address of such member appearing on the books of the corporation or given by the member to the corporation for purpose of notice; or if no such address appears or is given, at the place where the principal office of the corporation is located or by publication at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which the principal office is located.

If the ballot addressed to the member at the address of such member appearing on the books of the corporation is returned to the corporation by the United States Postal Service marked to indicate the United States Postal Service is unable to deliver ballot to the member at such address, all future ballots shall be deemed to have been duly given without further mailing if the same shall be available for the member upon written demand of the member at the principal office of the corporation for a period of one year from the date of the giving of the ballot to all other members.

The ballot shall not be delivered by electronic transmission by the corporation after either of the following:

- (1) The corporation is unable to deliver two consecutive notices to the member by that means.
- (2) The inability to so deliver the notices to the member becomes known to the secretary, any assistant secretary, the transfer agent, or other person responsible for the giving of the notice.

Any form of written ballot distributed to 10 or more members if the corporation has 100 or more members shall afford an opportunity on the form of written ballot to specify a choice between approval and disapproval of each matter or group of related matters intended, at the time the written ballot is distributed, to be acted upon by such written ballot, and shall provide, subject to reasonable specified conditions, that where the person solicited specifies a choice with respect to any such matter the vote shall be cast in accordance therewith.

In any election of directors, any form of written ballot in which the directors to be voted upon are named therein as candidates and which is marked by a member "withhold" or otherwise marked in a manner indicating that the authority to vote for the election of directors is withheld shall not be voted for the election of a director

The secretary shall cause a vote to be taken by written ballot upon any action or recommendation proposed in writing by 20 percent of the members of the corporation.

K. Record Date

The board may fix, in advance, a date as the record date for the purpose of determining the members entitled to notice of any meeting of members. Such record date shall not be more than 60 nor less than 10 days before the date of the meeting. If no record date is fixed, members at the close of business on the business day preceding the day on which notice is given or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the business day preceding the day on which the meeting is held are entitled to notice of a meeting of members. A determination of members entitled to

notice of a meeting of members shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting unless the board fixes a new record date for the adjourned meeting.

The board may fix, in advance, a date as the record date for the purpose of determining the members entitled to vote at a meeting of members. Such record date shall not be more than 60 days before the date of the meeting. Such record date shall also apply in the case of an adjournment of the meeting unless the board fixes a new record date for the adjourned meeting. If no record date is fixed, members on the day of the meeting who are otherwise eligible to vote are entitled to vote at the meeting of members or, in the case of an adjourned meeting, members on the day of the adjourned meeting who are otherwise eligible to vote are entitled to vote at the adjourned meeting of members.

ARTICLE V: DIRECTORS

A. Powers

All corporate decisions shall be made by the board of directors, except as otherwise provided in the bylaws.

B. Directors and Board Composition

The number of directors shall be not less than three nor more than five with the exact number of directors to be fixed, within the limits specified, by a vote of the directors.

B. Terms of Office

The term of office of the directors shall be four years.

Each director, including a director elected to fill a vacancy, shall hold office until the expiration of the term for which elected and until a successor has been elected and qualified, unless the director has been removed from office.

C. Voting

Each director shall have one vote on each matter presented to the board of directors for action. No director may vote by proxy.

The vote of a majority of the directors present at a duly called and noticed meeting at which a quorum is present is the act of the board.

D. Notice of Board Meetings

Regular meetings will be held at such times specified by the board of directors at the principal office of the corporation or such other place specified by the board of directors. If the day fixed

for the regular meeting falls on a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held at the same time and place on the next business day.

Special meetings of the board shall be held upon four days' notice by first-class mail or 48 hours' notice delivered personally, by telephone, including a voice messaging system, or by electronic transmission by the corporation. A notice, or waiver of notice, need not specify the purpose of any regular or special meeting of the board.

E. Waiver of Notice

Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director who provides a waiver of notice or consent to holding the meeting or an approval of the minutes thereof in writing, whether before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting, prior thereto or at its commencement, the lack of notice to that director.

All waivers, consents, and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meetings.

F. Participation by Electronic Transmission

Members of the board may participate in a meeting through use of conference telephone, electronic video screen communication, or electronic transmission by and to the corporation. Participation in a meeting through use of conference telephone or electronic video screen communication pursuant to this section constitutes presence in person at that meeting as long as all members participating in the meeting are able to hear one another.

Participation in a meeting through use of electronic transmission by and to the corporation, other than conference telephone and electronic video screen communication pursuant to this subdivision constitutes presence in person at that meeting if both of the following apply:

- (1) Each director participating in the meeting can communicate with all of the other members concurrently; and
- (2) Each director is provided the means of participating in all matters before the board, including, without limitation, the capacity to propose, or to interpose an objection to, a specific action to be taken by the corporation.

G. Quorum

A majority of the number of directors then in office constitutes a quorum of the board for the transaction of business

A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors if any action taken is approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for the meeting, or a greater number as is required by the articles or bylaws.

H. Adjournment

A majority of the directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. If the meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, notice of any adjournment to another time or place shall be given prior to the time of the adjourned meeting to the directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment.

I. Action Without a Meeting

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the board may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the board shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the board.

The action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the directors.

J. Board Vacancies

"Vacancy" when used with respect to the board means any authorized position of director which is not then filled, whether the vacancy is caused by death, resignation, removal, change in the number of directors authorized in the articles or bylaws, or otherwise.

The board may declare vacant the office of a director whose eligibility for election as a director has ceased, or who has been declared of unsound mind by a final order of court, or convicted of a felony.

Except for a vacancy created by the removal of a director, vacancies on the board may be filled by approval of the board or, if the number of directors then in office is less than a quorum, by (1) the unanimous written consent of the directors then in office, (2) the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office at a meeting held pursuant to notice or waivers of notice, or (3) a sole remaining director.

Vacancies occurring on the board by reason of the removal of directors may be filled only by the members.

The members may elect a director at any time to fill any vacancy not filled by the directors.

K. Resignation

Any director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the president, the secretary, or the board of directors of the corporation, unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such resignation. If the resignation is effective at a future time, a successor may be elected to take office when the resignation becomes effective.

L. Removal

Any or all directors may be removed without cause if one of the following applies:

- So long as the corporation has fewer than 50 Worker-members, the removal is approved by a majority of all Worker-members.
- When the corporation has 50 or more Worker-members, the removal is approved or ratified by the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes of Worker-members represented and voting at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present (which affirmative votes also constitute a majority of the required quorum) or written ballot in conformity with Section 12463 of the California Corporations Code.

Any reduction of the authorized number of directors does not remove any director prior to the expiration of the director's term of office.

M. Directors' Duties

- 1. In discharging the duties of their respective positions and in considering the best interests of the corporation, the board of directors, committees of the board, and individual directors shall consider the effects of any action or inaction upon
 - the members of the corporation;
 - the employees and work force of the corporation, its subsidiaries, and its suppliers;
 - the interests of its customers as beneficiaries of the purpose of the corporation to have a material positive impact on society and the environment;
 - community and societal factors, including those of each community in which offices or facilities of the corporation, its subsidiaries, or its suppliers are located;
 - the local and global environment;
 - the short-term and long-term interests of the corporation, including benefits that may accrue to the corporation from its long-term plans and the possibility that these interests may be best served by the continued independence of the corporation; and
 - the ability of the corporation to create a material positive impact on society and the environment, taken as a whole.
- 2. In discharging his or her duties, and in determining what is in the best interests of the corporation, a director shall not be required to regard any interest, or the interests of any particular group affected by such action, including the community investors, as a dominant or controlling interest or factor.
- 3. A director does not have a duty to any person other than a member in its capacity as a member with respect to the purpose of the corporation or the obligations set forth in this section, and nothing in this section express or implied, is intended to create or shall create or grant any right in or for any person other than a member or any cause of action by or for any person other than a member.
- 4. Any director is entitled to rely on the provisions regarding "best interests" as set forth above in enforcing his or her rights hereunder, and under state law and such reliance shall not, absent another breach, be construed as a breach of a director's duty of care, even in the context of a

change in control transaction where, as a result of weighing the interests set forth in this section, a director determines to accept an offer, between two competing offers, with a lower price.

ARTICLE VI: COMMITTEES

The board may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the number of directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present, create one or more committees, each consisting of two or more directors, to serve at the pleasure of the board. Appointments to such committees shall be by a majority vote of the directors then in office. The board may appoint one or more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent member at any meeting of the committee. Any such committee, to the extent provided in the resolution of the board or in the bylaws, shall have all the authority of the board, except with respect to:

- (1) The approval of any action for which approval of the members is required;
- (2) The filling of vacancies on the board or in any committee which has the authority of the board;
 - (3) The fixing of compensation of the directors for serving on the board or on any committee;
 - (4) The amendment or repeal of bylaws or the adoption of new bylaws;
- (5) The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the board which by its express terms is not so amendable or repealable;
 - (6) The appointment of committees of the board or the members thereof; and
- (7) The expenditure of corporate funds to support a nominee for director after there are more people nominated for director than can be elected.

A committee exercising the authority of the board shall not include as members persons who are not directors. However, the board may create other committees that do not exercise the authority of the board and these other committees may include persons regardless of whether they are directors.

ARTICLE VII: OFFICERS

A. Offices

The corporation shall have a president, a secretary, a chief financial officer (also known as treasurer), and such other officers with such titles and duties as shall be determined by the board.

B. Qualifications

Any number of offices may be held by the same person.

C. Election of Officers

The officers shall be elected by the board by written ballot and shall serve until resignation or removal

Officers may be removed by a vote of the board.

D. Resignation

Any officer may resign at any time upon written notice to the corporation without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the corporation under any contract to which the officer is a party.

E. Vacancy

A vacancy in any office resulting from an officer's death, resignation, removal, or disqualification, or from any other cause, will be filled by the board.

F. Duties of President

The president is the chief executive officer of the corporation. The president shall preside at board and membership meetings and will exercise and perform such other powers and duties as may be assigned from time to time by the board of directors.

G. Duties of Secretary

The secretary will keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office or such other place as designated by the board of directors, a book of minutes of all meetings and actions of the members, of the board of directors, and of committees of the board.

The secretary will keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office, the records of the corporation required to be kept as described in Article XI.

The secretary will give notice, or cause notice to be given, of all members' meetings, board meetings, and meetings of committees of the board for which notice is required by statute or by the bylaws. If the secretary or other person authorized by the secretary to give notice fails to act, notice of any meeting may be given by any other officer of the corporation.

The secretary will have such other powers and perform other duties as prescribed by the board of directors or by the bylaws.

H. Duties of Chief Financial Officer

The chief financial officer will keep, or cause to be kept, adequate and correct books and records of accounts of the properties and business transactions of the corporation, including accounts of

its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital, retained earnings, and memberships.

The chief financial officer will (1) deposit corporate funds and other valuables in the corporation's name and to its credit with depositaries designated by the board of directors; (2) make disbursements of corporate funds as authorized by the board; (3) render a statement of the corporation's financial condition and an account of all transactions conducted as chief financial officer whenever requested by the president or the board of directors; and (4) have other powers and perform other duties as prescribed by the board of directors or the bylaws.

The chief financial officer will be deemed to be the treasurer for purposes of giving any reports or executing any certificates or other documents.

ARTICLE VIII: ALLOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

A. Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the corporation shall end on the last day of December of each year.

B. Definitions

"Patronage" may be measured by work performed, including, but not limited to, wages earned, number of hours worked, number of jobs created, or some combination of these measures, as determined by the board in its sole discretion. Unless otherwise determined by the board, Patronage shall be defined as the number of hours worked by each Worker-member for the corporation.

"Patronage Dividends" shall have the definition contained in Internal Revenue Code Section 1388(a) (dividends paid to members based on Patronage). Net earnings declared as Patronage Dividends with respect to a period of time, and paid to a member, shall be apportioned among the members in accordance with the ratio that each member's patronage during the period bears to total patronage by all members during the period. Patronage Dividends may only be made to the Worker-member class.

"Distribution" means the distribution of dividends, but does not include Patronage Dividends. Distributions in any fiscal year shall not exceed 15 percent, multiplied by contributions (whether by membership fees, capital credits, or otherwise) to capital.

"Member Account" shall be defined as each member's capital account in the corporation (initial capital contribution plus written notices of allocation minus Patronage Dividends and Distributions minus losses allocated to the member account plus/minus any other item that affects the balance in the member's capital account). Prior to each new round of equity investment in the Company, Member Accounts shall be "booked up" in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code.

The "Collective Account" shall be reserves that are retained in the corporation and not allocated to members.

C. Allocations and Distributions

Preferred Shareholders will be entitled to receive annual non-cumulative Distributions, when, as, and if declared by the board, out of any funds and assets of the corporation legally available therefor.

With respect to any fiscal year, unless each Preferred Shareholder receives a Distribution of at least five percent (5%) of the amount originally paid by such Preferred Shareholder for his/her/its membership (the "Original Issue Price"), no Patronage Dividend of Distribution may be paid to the Worker-members

Any amounts allocated by the board to reserves shall be allocated to the Collective Account.

Any fiscal year loss shall be allocated seventy-five percent (75%) to Worker-member Accounts in proportion to Patronage during the fiscal year and twenty-five (25%) to the Collective Account, with the exception of Losses occurring and/or carried over from the corporation's first two fiscal years which shall be allocated 100% to the Collective Account.

Except for the five percent (5%) target Distribution to Preferred Shareholders, the percentages referred to in this section can be changed for a coming fiscal year by the board.

At the request of any Preferred Member and with approval of the board, Preferred Distributions, rather than being paid in cash, may be allocated to such Preferred Member's capital account.

D. Patronage Dividends

The apportionment, distribution, and payment of net earnings to Worker-members provided for herein may be paid in cash, credits, or written notices of allocation as determined by the board in its sole discretion.

Patronage Dividends shall be made fifty percent (50%) in cash and fifty percent (50%) to each individual Member Account as a written notice of allocation, unless different proportions are approved by the board within eight-and-a-half months following the fiscal year's close – however, at least twenty percent (20%) must be distributed in cash.

Written notices of allocation may be qualified or non-qualified or a combination of the two as determined by the board in its sole discretion.

E. Worker-Members' Covenant to Declare Income for Tax Purposes

Each member shall take into account on his or her income tax return the amount of any Patronage Dividends which are made in qualified written notices of allocation (as defined in 26 U.S.C. Section 1388) at their stated dollar amounts in the manner provided in 26 U.S.C. Section

1385(a) in the taxable year in which such written notices of allocation are received by the member.

F. Redemption of Preferred Memberships

The corporation has the right to redeem any or all, or any portion of, Preferred Memberships at any time. The Redemption Price shall be the Original Issue Price.

Following the second anniversary of his or her investment, a Preferred Member is entitled to request redemption of his or her Membership at a price equal to the amount originally invested. If the Preferred Member requests a redemption in the third year of investment, the board has the discretion to pay 70 percent of the original amount invested. In the fourth year, the board has the discretion to pay 80 percent of the original amount invested. In the fifth year, the board has the discretion to pay 90 percent of the original amount invested. Thereafter, the redemption shall be equal to the amount originally invested.

If the corporation determines that a requested redemption may impair the corporation's ability to operate effectively, the board may limit, postpone, or refuse the redemption. Redemptions may be paid in the form of cash or promissory notes.

G. Payment Rights Regarding Worker-Member Accounts

When a Worker-member's membership in the corporation is terminated for any reason, the amount in her or his Member Account will automatically be redeemed in exchange for debt. The corporation shall repay the debt within five years of the membership termination, with interest accruing at the discount rate – as set by the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco – plus two percent (2%), on the amount outstanding at the end of each fiscal year.

The corporation, in settling a Member Account, shall have the right to set off any and all indebtedness of the former member to the corporation.

H. Periodic Redemption of Worker-Member Accounts

The corporation shall aim to pay out in cash to the Worker-members all funds credited to their Member Accounts within three (3) years of the date they were first credited. As a general rule, written notices of allocation credited to Member Accounts (including notices now converted to debt) will be paid out in the order in which they are credited, with the oldest paid out first; however, the board can decide to accelerate the repayment of debt owed to former members on a case by case basis. If the corporation does not have sufficient funds to pay out all funds credited to Member Accounts for a given fiscal year, then funds will be paid out in proportion to the balance in the Member Accounts

I. Unclaimed Equity Interests

Any proprietary interest in the corporation held by a member that would otherwise escheat to the State of California as unclaimed personal property shall instead become the property of the

corporation if the corporation gives at least 60 days prior notice of the proposed transfer to the affected member by (1) first-class or second-class mail to the last address of the member shown on the corporation's records, and (2) by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which the corporation has its principal office. No property or funds shall become the property of the corporation under this section if written notice objecting to the transfer is received by the corporation from the affected member prior to the date of the proposed transfer.

J. Distributions Upon Liquidation or Sale

After repayment of indebtedness and allowance for any reserves which are reasonably necessary for contingent or unforeseen liabilities or obligations of the corporation, liquidation proceeds (including proceeds from a Deemed Liquidation Event (defined below)) shall be paid to Preferred Members up to a maximum of the Original Issue Price before Worker-members receive any liquidation proceeds.

Following the distribution to Preferred Members, any remaining proceeds shall be used to redeem all Worker-members' Member Account Balances.

Any remaining proceeds shall be distributed pro rata in accordance with lifetime Patronage to all current and former Worker-members, or to their heirs. No distribution need be made to any person who fails to acknowledge the receipt of notice of such distribution in a timely manner. Said notice shall be deemed sufficient if sent by certified mail, at least 30 days before distribution of any residual assets, to the person's last known business or residence address.

"Deemed Liquidation Event" means: (i) a merger or consolidation in which (x) the corporation is a constituent party or (y) a subsidiary of the corporation is a constituent party and the corporation issues shares of its capital stock pursuant to such merger or consolidation, except any such merger or consolidation involving the corporation or a subsidiary in which the shares of capital stock of the corporation outstanding immediately prior to such merger or consolidation continue to represent, or are converted into or exchanged for shares of capital stock that represent, immediately following such merger or consolidation, at least a majority, by voting power, of the capital stock of (1) the surviving or resulting corporation or (2) if the surviving or resulting corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of another corporation immediately following such merger or consolidation, the parent corporation of such surviving or resulting corporation; or (ii) the sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license, or other disposition, in a single transaction or series of related transactions, by the corporation or any subsidiary of the corporation of all or substantially all the assets of the corporation and its subsidiaries taken as a whole, or the sale or disposition (whether by merger, consolidation, or otherwise) of one or more subsidiaries of the corporation if substantially all of the assets of the corporation and its subsidiaries taken as a whole are held by such subsidiary or subsidiaries, except where such sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license, or other disposition is to a wholly owned subsidiary of the corporation.

K. Limitations

The corporation shall not purchase or redeem memberships, or pay a Patronage Dividend to members out of earnings of the corporation on nonmember patronage, or make a Distribution, if

the corporation purchasing or redeeming memberships or making the Distribution is, or as a result thereof would be, likely to be unable to meet its liabilities (except those whose payment is otherwise adequately provided for) as they mature.

ARTICLE IX: CHECKS AND CONTRACTS

A. Authorized Signatories for Checks

All checks, drafts, other orders for payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of or payable to the corporation will be signed or endorsed by the person or persons in the manner authorized from time to time by resolution of the board of directors.

B. Executing Corporate Contracts and Instruments

The board of directors by resolution may authorize any officer, officers, agent, or agents to enter into any contract or to execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation. This authority may be general or it may be confined to one or more specific matters. No officer, agent, employee, or other person purporting to act on behalf of the corporation will have any power or authority to bind the corporation in any way, to pledge the corporation's credit, or to render the corporation liable for any purpose or in any amount, unless that person was acting with authority granted by the board of directors as provided in these bylaws, or unless an unauthorized act was later ratified by the corporation.

ARTICLE X: TRANSFER OF MEMBERSHIPS

No Worker-member may transfer her or his membership or any right arising therefrom. Any attempted assignment or transfer shall be wholly void and shall confer no rights on the intended assignee or transferee. All rights as a Worker-member of the corporation cease upon the member's death.

ARTICLE XI: RECORDS

A. Records Required to Be Kept

The corporation shall keep at its principal office:

- the original or a copy of its articles and bylaws as amended to date;
- adequate and correct books and records of account;
- minutes of the proceedings of its members, board, and committees of the board; and
- a record of its members giving their names and addresses and the class of membership.

Minutes and other books and records shall be kept either in written form or in any other form capable of being converted into clearly legible tangible form or in any combination of the foregoing.

B. Inspection Rights

The corporation's bylaws and articles shall be open to inspection by the members at all reasonable times during office hours.

Any such inspection may be made in person or by agent or attorney and the right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts.

The accounting books and records and minutes of proceedings of the members and the board and committees of the board shall be open to inspection upon the written demand on the corporation of any member at any reasonable time, for a purpose reasonably related to such person's interests as a member.

Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect and copy all books, records and documents of every kind and to inspect the physical properties of the corporation.

A member or members possessing 5 percent or more of the voting power for a purpose reasonably related to the members' interest as members may do either or both of the following:

(1) Inspect and copy the record of all the members' names, addresses, and voting rights, at reasonable times, upon five business days' prior written demand upon the corporation which demand shall state the purpose for which the inspection rights are requested; or (2) Obtain from the secretary of the corporation, upon written demand and tender of a reasonable charge, a list of the names, addresses, and voting rights of those members entitled to vote for the election of directors, as of the most recent record date for which it has been compiled or as of a date specified by the member subsequent to the date of demand. The demand shall state the purpose for which the list is requested. The membership list shall be made available on or before the later of 10 business days after the demand is received or after the date specified therein as the date as of which the list is to be compiled.

Where the corporation reasonably believes that the information will be used for another purpose, or where it provides a reasonable alternative as described below, it may deny the member access to the list.

Within 10 business days after receiving a demand for inspection, the corporation may deliver to the person or persons making the demand a written offer of an alternative method of achieving the purpose identified in the demand without providing access to or a copy of the membership list. An alternative method which reasonably and in a timely manner accomplishes the proper purpose set forth in the demand shall be deemed a reasonable alternative, unless within a reasonable time after acceptance of the offer the corporation fails to do those things which it

offered to do. Any rejection of the offer shall be in writing and shall indicate the reasons the alternative proposed by the corporation does not meet the proper purpose of the demand.

C. Annual Report

So long as the corporation does not have more than 25 members at any time during the fiscal year, it shall not be required to prepare an annual report.

D. Required Notices

The corporation shall furnish annually to its members and directors a statement of any transaction or indemnification of a kind described in subdivision (d) or (e) of Section 12592 of the California Corporations Code, if any such transaction or indemnification took place. The statement shall be provided by mailing or delivering the required statement within 120 days after the close of the corporation's fiscal year. The statement may be sent by electronic transmission by the corporation.

For a period of 60 days following the conclusion of an annual, regular, or special meeting of members, the corporation shall, upon written request from a member, forthwith inform the member of the result of any particular vote of members taken at the meeting, including the number of memberships voting for, the number of memberships voting against, and the number of memberships abstaining or withheld from voting. If the matter voted on was the election of directors, the corporation shall report the number of memberships cast for each nominee for director.

ARTICLE XII: INDEMNIFICATION

The corporation shall have power to indemnify its officers, directors, employees, and agents to the fullest extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE XIII: STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

A. General Standards

A director shall perform the duties of a director, including duties as a member of any committee of the board upon which the director may serve, in good faith, in a manner such director believes to be in the best interests of the corporation and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances.

In performing the duties of a director, a director shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by:

- (1) One or more officers or employees of the corporation whom the director believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented;
- (2) Counsel, independent accountants or other persons as to matters which the director believes to be within such person's professional or expert competence; or
- (3) A committee upon which the director does not serve that is composed exclusively of any or any combination of directors, persons described in paragraph (1), or persons described in paragraph (2), as to matters within the committee's designated authority, which committee the director believes to merit confidence, so long as, in any such case, the director acts in good faith, after reasonable inquiry when the need therefor is indicated by the circumstances and without knowledge that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted.

B. Contracts with Interested Persons

No contract or other transaction between the corporation and one or more of its directors, or between the corporation and any domestic or foreign corporation, firm, or association in which one or more of its directors has a material financial interest, is either void or voidable because such director or directors or such other corporation, business corporation, firm, or association are parties or because such director or directors are present at the meeting of the board or a committee thereof which authorizes, approves or ratifies the contract or transaction, if:

- (1) The material facts as to the transaction and as to such director's interest are fully disclosed or known to the members and such contract or transaction is approved by the members in accordance with Section 12224 of the California Corporations Code in good faith, with any membership owned by any interested director not being entitled to vote thereon;
- (2) The material facts as to the transaction and as to such director's interest are fully disclosed or known to the board or committee, and the board or committee authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract or transaction in good faith by a vote sufficient without counting the vote of the interested director or directors and the contract or transaction is just and reasonable as to the corporation at the time it is authorized, approved or ratified; or
- (3) As to contracts or transactions not approved as provided in paragraph (1) or (2), the person asserting the validity of the contract or transaction sustains the burden of proving that the contract or transaction was just and reasonable as to the corporation at the time it was authorized, approved or ratified.

Neither a mere common directorship nor a member-patron relationship on terms available to all members constitutes a material financial interest within the meaning of this section. A director is not interested within the meaning of this section in a resolution fixing the compensation of another director as a director, officer, or employee of the corporation, notwithstanding the fact that the first director is also receiving compensation from the corporation.

C. Contracts with Entities with Common Directors

No contract or other transaction between the corporation and any corporation, business corporation, or association of which one or more of its directors are directors is either void or voidable because such director or directors are present at the meeting of the board or a committee thereof which authorizes, approves or ratifies the contract or transaction, if:

- (1) The material facts as to the transaction and as to such director's other directorship are fully disclosed or known to the board or committee, and the board or committee authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract or transaction in good faith by a vote sufficient without counting the vote of the common director or directors or the contract or transaction is approved by the members in good faith; or
- (2) As to contracts or transactions not approved as provided in paragraph (1), the contract or transaction is just and reasonable as to the corporation at the time it is authorized, approved or ratified

This section does not apply to contracts or transactions covered by section XIII(B).

<u>D. Determination of a Quorum for Meetings regarding the Approval of a Contract with an Interested or Common Director</u>

Interested or common directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the board or a committee thereof which authorizes, approves, or ratifies a contract or transaction described in this Article.

ARTICLE XIV: BYLAW AMENDMENT

Bylaws may be adopted, amended, or repealed by approval of three-quarters of the current Worker-members in good standing, provided, however, that adoption, amendment, or repeal also requires approval by the members of a class or series if that action would do any of the following:

- (1) Materially and adversely affect the rights or obligations of that class or series as to voting, dissolution, redemption, transfer, distributions, patronage dividends, patronage, property rights, or rights to repayment of contributed capital, in a manner different than such action affects another class or another series within the same class.
- (2) Materially and adversely affect such class or series as to voting, dissolution, redemption, transfer, distributions, patronage dividends, patronage, property rights, or rights to repayment of contributed capital, by changing the rights, privileges, preferences, restrictions or conditions of another class or another series within the same class.
- (3) Increase or decrease the number of memberships authorized for the class.
- (4) Increase the number of memberships authorized for another class.
- (5) Effect an exchange, reclassification or cancellation of all or part of the memberships of the class or series.
- (6) Authorize a new class of memberships.

Except as provided in Sections 12331, 12360, 12364, 12462, and 12484 of the California Cooperative Corporation Law, the board of directors may also adopt, amend, or repeal bylaws unless the action would do any of the following:

- (1) Materially and adversely affect the rights or obligations of members as to voting, dissolution, redemption, transfer, distributions, patronage dividends, patronage, property rights, or rights to repayment of contributed capital.
- (2) Increase or decrease the number or members authorized in total or for any class.
- (3) Effect an exchange, reclassification, or cancellation of all or part of the memberships.
- (4) Authorize a new class of membership.

A bylaw specifying or changing a fixed number of directors or the maximum or minimum number or changing from a fixed to a variable board or vice versa may only be adopted by approval of the members.

A provision in the bylaws requiring a greater vote than is required by law shall not be altered, amended, or repealed except by the greater vote, unless otherwise provided in the bylaws.

No amendment of the articles or bylaws may extend the term of a director beyond that for which the director was elected, nor may any bylaw provision increasing the terms of directors be adopted without approval by the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes represented and voting at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present (which affirmative votes also constitute a majority of the required quorum) or written ballot in conformity with Section 12463 of the California Corporations Code.